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Dear Chairman Connelly:

c. Dennis Building =. rosT Oi FicE i 1549

Attorney General Alan Wilson has referred your letter to the Opinions section. Your letter

states the following:

Act 388 of 2006, the Property Tax Reform Act, imposes a cap on increases

in millage rates imposed for the operating purposes of counties through its

amendments to Section 6-1-320 of the South Carolina Code. Your office has

explained that Section 6-1-320 limits millage rate increases to the average twelve

month consumer price indices of the preceding calendar year, and “the percentage

increase in the previous year in the population of the entity as determined by the

Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office.” Op. S.C. Att’y Gen., 2021 WL 5034371

(October 18, 2021) (quoting S.C. Code Ann. § 6-l-320(A)(l) (Supp. 2020)).

Allendale County is especially restricted by this





S.C. Code § 4-9-140. However, our opinions also explain that the council cannot reduce funding

for an elected official to such an extent that the office’s functions are compromised.

S.C. Code § 4-9-25. Section 4-9-33 makes clear that county police departments created thereunder

are authorized to provide “law enforcement functions” which is defined as “those activities and

duties which require the exercise ofcustodial arrest authority by a sheriff’ and incidental activities.

Therefore, it is this Office’s opinion that a court would hold a county may use the public funds

available under current millage to fund a county police department’s operations as they would

serve a public purpose.

This Office understands the concern in your letter is focused on whether the county can

allocate funds collected under current millage in future budgets to fund a county police department

and correspondingly reduce funding of the sheriffs office. Initially, we note that county council

is authorized under the general law of this state to adopt annual budgets for the operation of county

government.
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County council shall adopt annually and prior to the beginning of the fiscal year

operating and capital budgets for the operation of county government and shall in

such budgets identify the sources of anticipated revenue including taxes necessary

to meet the financial requirements of the budgets adopted. Council shall further

provide for the levy and collection of taxes necessary to meet all budget

requirements except as provided for by other revenue sources.

[I]n a 201 1 opinion this Office opined that a county council “cannot interfere with

any of the duties and responsibilities given to elected county officials under State

All county offices, departments, boards, commissions or institutions receiving

county funds shall make a full, detailed annual fiscal report to the county council

at the end of the fiscal year.

All counties of the State . . . have authority to enact regulations, resolutions, and

ordinances, not inconsistent with the Constitution and general law of this State,

including the exercise of these powers in relation to health and order in counties or

respecting any subject as appears to them necessary and proper for the security,

general welfare, and convenience ofcounties or for preserving health, peace, order,

and good government in them. The powers of a county must be liberally construed

in favor of the county and the specific mention of particular powers may not be

construed as limiting in any maimer the general powers of counties.



1 The South Carolina Supreme Court decision in Graham v. Creek 289 S.C. 165, 345 S.E.2d 717 (1986)
provides an example of



Conclusion

As is discussed more fully above, it is this Offices opinion that if a referendum is held and

the electorate approves the creation of a county police department that “duplicate [s] or replace [s]

the law enforcement functions of a sheriff,” county council is authorized to use current millage to

fund such a department’s operations. S.C. Code § 4-9-33. Because section 4-9-33 permits a county

police department to either “duplicate” or “replace the law enforcementt8y



review: AND APPROVED BY:
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Matthew Houck

Assistant Attorney General

Sincerely,

MY -
Robert D. Cook

Solicitor General

Office’s opinion that law enforcement services authorized by section 4-9-33 would not be

considered a new or future service.


